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                               PART TWO
         SC.038  (CONTINUED FROM SC.37)...INFORMATION ON SOME BRANCHES
                 OF THE HILL FAMILY OF FAIRFIELD COUNTY, SOUTH
                 CAROLINA.

         Gathered & Entered in July of 1987 by Robert R. Hill of
         Brandon, Florida.  Updated in August 1990.

         Source of Information: My Research at S.C. Archives in
         Columbia, S.C.; Fairfield County Museum in Winnsboro, S.C;
         Book "Hill-Hill Mobley Connections of Fairfield County, S.C,"
         by George A.  Hill.

         Note: To pick up where we left off on SC.37.. we find that we
         are dealing with two brothers, Richard Hill 3/ and William
         Hill Sr. 3/, sons of Richard Hill 2/. Therefore, in order to
         try to help the reader understand the situation, and for
         purposes of clarity, a partial & brief run down on the
         genealogy of this family is given:

         Richard Hill 1/ m. Dorcas Mobley had a son...
         Richard Hill Jr. 2/ ...who had two sons....
              Richard Hill 3/ (below) & William Hill Sr. 3/.
          1.  Richard Hill 3/ married Mary Mobley. Children were:
              William E. Hill 4/, Simeon Hill 4/, Sion Hill 4/,
              Richard 4/ and John Hill 4/.  Daughters: Dorcas Hill 4/
              m. a Barker, Susannah Hill 4/ & Sarah Hill 4/.
          2.  William Hill Sr. 3/ had a son named William Hill Jr.
              4/, who married a Dorcas Mobley, and they were the
              parents of Richard Hill Jr.  5/ that married Dorcas
              Funderburgh (listed later below); Samuel Hill 5/; Elijah
              Hill 5/; Elizabeth Hill 5/; John Hill 5/; Mary Hill 5/;
              and Abel Hill 5/..

         RICHARD HILL 3/, AND WIFE MARY MOBLEY (SON OF RICHARD HILL
         JR. 2/).

         Briefly, this Richard Hill 3/ & Mary Mobley were the parents
         to: William, Simeon, Richard, Sion & John Hill, daughters
         Dorcas m. Barker, Susannah & Sarah Hill, of whom some moved
         to Georgia.

              THE WILL OF RICHARD HILL 3/ OF FAIRFIELD COUNTY, S.C

            Fairfield County Wills, Volume 1, Section 5, Page 59:

            "Last Will & Testament of Richard Hill, deceased."

         IN THE NAME OF GOD, AMEN: Know ye that I Richard Hill, of the
         State of South Carolina and Fairfield District, being weak of
         body but of perfect mind and memory, knowing that it is
         appointed for all men to die; and as touching such worldly
         property as it hath pleased God to bless me with, it is my
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         will that my property be judiciously appraised and remain as
         it is to the use of my family for my wife and children.

         Secondly It is my will that my wife Mary Hill do posses, and
         occupy the plantation whereon I now live, with all the
         appurtenances thereunto belonging during her lifetime, or
         widowhood. Then to be equally divided at her decease or
         marriage among my five sons, VIZ: WILLIAM, SIMEON, RICHARD,
         SION and JOHN.

         Thirdly It is my will that unto each of my daughters namely
         DARKUS, SUSANNAH AND SARAH, unto each of them to be given to
         the amount of Forty Dollars of my goods and chattels after
         they have been appraised, and the remainder if any to be
         equally divided among my children."

                            End of Will

         The above will was proved in court on January 22nd, 1810,
         showing that Richard Hill 3/ died in 1810.  The three
         witnesses proving the will was John McCullough, George S.
         Smith and Daniel A. Mobley.

         Richard Hill 3/ was in the process of writing his will when
         he died and never completed it because the three witnesses
         stated they were present when Richard Hill 3/ directed John
         McCullough to write, which was the same substance contained
         above and called his will, but the deceased became so weak
         and insensible before the will was perfected, but was truly
         sensible when he spoke the testamentory words, the said
         deponent further says that they being present were called
         upon to witness the above transaction and that they did in
         the presence of each other did subscribe their names
         thereto."

         Sworn to the 5th day of February 1811
                signed by/ John McCully
                           George (x) Smith
                           Davis A. Mobley

         Davis & Daniel Mobley were nephews to the widow, Mary
         (Mobley) Hill.

         In the final distribution, Susannah, Sarah and John Hill were
         not listed (John had died in 1810).

         Now it should be noted that Richard Hill 3/ had a brother
         William Hill Sr. 3/, who in turn had a son William Hill Jr.
         4/ and it is with him we will pick up this document...

         WILLIAM HILL JR. 4/ (WIFE DORCAS MOBLEY, DAUGHTER OF WILLIAM
         MOBLEY SR. & WIFE ANN OSBORNE).

         William Hill Jr 4/ was born before 1750 and both he and his
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         wife died ca. 1795 in Camden District, today's Fairfield
         County.

         "William Hill's Estate-General Return dated July 1796, Final
         Settlement dated 24th November 1804, by Thomas Mobley in Box
         4, Package 114." Listed was:

         1.  Richard Hill 5/,

         2.  Samuel Hill 5/.   "Samuel & Elijah have Thomas Meador
                                for their Guardian, in 1798-Box 4,
         3.  Elijah Hill 5/.    Package 115."

         4.  Elizabeth Hill 5/.

         5.  John Hill 5/.     " John & Mary Hill have Abel Hill as
                                 Guardian, 1798-4-116"
         6.  Mary Hill 5/      "Married Matthew Hosch"

         7.  Abel Hill 5/.

         Administrators (1795) Abel Hill, Asaph Hill & Thomas Mobley.

         As shown above several of the children were minors when
         William Hill Jr. 4/ died.

                RICHARD HILL 5/, SON OF WILLIAM HILL JR. 4/

         Richard Hill 5/ was born ca. 1775-1776 (census records) and
         was of legal age shortly after the settlement of his father's
         estate.  Now the fact that there were so many Richard Hills
         in this area of South Carolina has made it very difficult to
         trace this family but it appears that this Richard Hill went
         be the name of "Richard Hill Jr." 5/ (5th generation).  He
         died on 27th October 1837 in Fairfield County, S.C. He was
         married to Dorcas Funderburgh, granddaughter of Henry & Mary
         Funderburgh.  (see later).

               SAMUEL HILL 5/ (SON OF WILLIAM HILL JR. 4).

         Very little has been found on Samuel Hill 5/ and it is not
         clear if he moved westward or remained in Fairfield County.
         Nancy Hill, daughter of John Hill (d. 1810) married a Samuel
         Hill but we have not been able to confirm if it was the same
         man.

               ELIJAH HILL 5/ (SON OF WILLIAM HILL JR. 4)

         Elijah Hill 5/ was a minor in 1795 and was a ward of Thomas
         Meador in 1798. Samuel Hill 5/ and Elijah Hill 5/ is known to
         purchased 98 acres of land from Asaph Hill in 1806 and was
         witnessed by a Richard Hill. They do not appear again in
         Fairfield County records and there is an Elijah Hill that
         shows up in Madison County, Alabama, then Mississippi
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         Territory in an 1815 Tax List.

               ELIZABETH HILL 5/ (DAUGHTER OF WILLIAM HILL JR. 4/)

         Elizabeth Hill 5/ married John Alsup (Alsop) and there is
         nothing else found on her.

              JOHN HILL 5/ (SON OF WILLIAM HILL JR. 4/)

         John Hill 5/ was a minor when his parents died and his
         guardian was Abel Hill 5/, later a John Foote was his
         guardian. After he became of age he moved to Mississippi.

         Deed Book W, Page 356, dated 11 August 1814, Fairfield
         County, S.C..."Know all men by these presents that I John
         Hill of Mississippi Territory for $ 535.00, to me in hand,
         paid by Francis Edrington Jr. of Fairfield County, S.C. sold
         77 acres on Beaver Creek, it being part of the Real Estate of
         William Hill, late of Fairfield County, deceased, being part
         of the Real Estate that was originally laid out for said John
         Hill by order of Court of Common Pleas as one of the heirs of
         said William Hill." signed/John Hill.

         John Hill may have moved to Madison County, Alabama.

             MARY HILL 5/ (DAUGHTER OF WILLIAM HILL JR. 4/)

         Mary Hill 5/ was born ca. 1793. She was a minor when her
         parents died and she had as her guardian, Abel Hill, Richard
         Hill and then was raised by Thomas & Naomi Meador.

         About 1809 she married Matthew Hosch and they moved to Walton
         County, Georgia and were there by 1823

         *************************************************************

         THE FAMILY LISTING FOR THE RICHARD HILL JR. 5/ & DORCAS
         FUNDERBURGH FAMILY.

         Richard Hill Jr. 5/ was born in Fairfield County, South
         Carolina ca. 1775 and died on 27th or 28th October 1837. He
         married Dorcas Funderburgh (b. ca. 1775) who died ca. 1852.

         He was the son of William Hill Jr/ 4 and Dorcas Mobley. He
         used the designation of "Junior" to distinguish himself from
         that of another Richard Hill (d. 1810 and m. Mary Mobley).
         He was a planter and lived on 500 acres on John's Creek in
         the northwest corner of today's Fairfield County.  Their
         Children were:

              1.  William F. Hill 6/, b. ca. 1800, wife named
                  Margaret.
              2.  Henry Hill 6/, b. ca. 1802.
              3.  Asaph Hill 6/, b. ca. 1804, m. 1st Mary Mobley, 2nd
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                  Jennie Stevenson.
              4.  Elijah Hill 6/, b. ca. 1808, died 1848/49. m.
                  Margaret Price.
              5.  Matthew Hill 6/, b. ca. 1810.
              6.  Reuben F. Hill 6/, b. ca. 1813. died 1848 (August).
                  Married Elizabeth Ellen Housch (b. 1821-d. 8 May
                  1895).  After his death she remarried Jacob F. Hill,
                  his nephew, who was born ca. 1830 thus a younger
                  man and the suspected son of William F. Hill 6/.

         When Richard Hill Jr. 5/ died his land was disposed of in the
         following manner:

         Fairfield District S.C.
         Pages 9, 10 of 1849 Minutes of the Court

         "Richard Hill died October 28, 1837...297 and 1/2 acres of
         land on John's Creek, Waters of Sandy River in Fairfield
         County bounded by Jacob Stone, Solomon Coleman, John
         Stevenson, ET Al...Said Richard's heirs at law (are) Asaph
         Hill, Henry Hill, William F. Hill, Elijah Hill, Matthew Hill,
         Reuben Hill, Mary Hill now Chapman, wife of William Chapman
         Sr., Dorcas Hill (now Dorcas Stevenson), wife of John
         Stevenson, Elizabeth Hill, now Elizabeth Achinson, wife of
         Nathaniel Achinson."

         "That since Richard Hill's death, Elijah Hill has departed
         this life intestate, leaving heirs, his widow Margaret Hill
         and five children, namely: Edward Hill, Dorcas Hill, Savilla
         Hill, Mary Hill, and Asaph Hill."

         "Since the death of Richard Hill, Reuben Hill has departed
         this life intestate leaving heirs...  Widow Ellen Hill, three
         children, John C. Hill, Susan Hill and Henry Hill."

         "That William F. Hill, William Chapman & wife Mary, John
         Stevenson and wife Dorcas since Richard's death have conveyed
         their rights to the Administrator...(ASAPH HILL) the parties
         all being of full age-agree and deliver 1/3rd to Richard
         Hill's widow, Dorcas Hill."

         FAIRFIELD DISTRICT, 24th September 1849
         "Personally appeared Major William L. Lyles and made oath
         that he is informed and believes that: Nathaniel Achinson and
         Elizabeth, his wife, Matthew Hill, Margaret Hill, widow of
         Elijah Hill, deceased, Edward Hill, Dorcas Hill, Savilla
         Hill, Mary, Asaph Hill, children of Elijah Hill, deceased,
         all reside beyond the limits of the state.
                                           signed/ Wm. L. Lyles

         1.   WILLIAM F. HILL 6/ (SON OF RICHARD HILL JR. 5/ & DORCAS
              FUNDERBURGH).

         William F. Hill 6/ was a son of Richard Hill Jr 5/ and his
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         wife Dorcas Funderburg and was born in Fairfield County, S.C.
         ca. 1800.

         The wife of William F. Hill 6/ is known only as Margaret, but
         it is possible that she was Margaret Stone.  She was a
         daughter of Jacob Stone Jr. and Margaret Cockrell.  Margaret
         Cockrell was a daughter of Moses Cockrell and Susan Feaster,
         a daughter of Andrew Feaster and a widow Margaret Fry Cooper.

         Margaret Stone's grandfather was Jacob Stone Sr. and was a
         Revolutionary Soldier, who married Eve Cooper, a daughter of
         Margaret Fry Cooper and step-daughter of Andrew Feaster Sr.

         Margaret Cockrell's sister, Frances Cockrell, married
         Littleton Hill, who lived to the north and in an area that is
         today's Chester County, who was a son of a William Hill Sr.,
         but no relation to William F.  Hill. or his Hill family.

         In the 1830 Census, William F. Hill 6/ is listed on the very
         same page as that of his father, Richard Hill 5/ and his
         brothers, Asaph 6/ and Henry Hill 6/.  He was missing in the
         1840 census but is believed to have been in Walton County,
         Georgia where a William F. Hill 6/ was listed, along with his
         brother, Elijah Hill 6/.

         In the 1850 census of Fairfield County, S.C., he was listed
         on the same page as was Elizabeth Ellen Hill, widow of his
         brother, Reuben Hill 6/. It is unknown if William 6/ died in
         Fairfield County, S.C., or moved westward.

         The marriage of William F. Hill 6/ is somewhat debatable but
         this writer feels his wife was Margaret Cooper, daughter of
         Adam Cooper for the following reason:

         Fairfield Deed Book NN, Page 95..."Captain William F. Hill,
         227 and 1/10 acres of land conveyed to William by Adam
         Cooper, deceased on November 23, 1833 on branch of McClures
         Creek, branch of Beaver Creek.
                                       William F. Hill
                                       Margaret F. Hill

         2.           HENRY F. HILL 6/ (son of Richard Hill Jr. 5/)

         Henry Hill 6/ was the son of Richard Hill Jr. 5/ and wife
         Dorcas Funderburgh. He was born about 1798-1802 in Fairfield
         County, S.C.  and was found in the census of Fairfield County
         for 1820 (Vol.  5), page 47, 5th line.

         Henry Hill
         1 male 16-26 years of age
         1 female under 10 years of age
         1 female 16-18 years of age

         In a Local census taken in 1829 for Fairfield County, Henry
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         Hill was listed with 6 persons in his household.
         Fairfield County Census 1830, Page 120.. (Volume ?)

         Henry Hill
         1 male under 5 years of age
         1 male male 5-10 years of age
         1 male 20-30 years of age
         2 females 5-10 years of age
         1 female 20-30 years of age
         1 female slave

         Henry F. Hill 6/ moved to Georgia and on the 2nd of May 1847,
         in Walton County, Georgia, he along with his brother William
         E. Hill 6/, signed as witnesses to the will of their brother
         Sion Hill.

         Henry F. Hill 6/ was found in Jackson County, Georgia and he
         signed the will of his brother, Sion Hill. He was shown in
         the 1840 Census of Jackson County:

         Henry F. Hill
         1 male 5-10 years of age
         2 males 10-15 years of age
         1 male 30-40 years of age
         2 females 5-10 years of age
         1 female 20-30 years of age

         1850 Census of Gwinnett County, Georgia (Ben Smith Township)
         421-210, Par. 1172.
                          age        born in
         Henry F. Hill    52   male     S.C.
         Nancy Hill       50   female   S.C.
         Martha Hill      14   female   S.C.
         Mary Hill        12   female   S.C.

         It is not certain if this is the same Henry Hill of Fairfield
         County, S.C. but an elderly lady (descendent) stated that he
         was and Martha Hill married a Cox and Mary Hill married 1st a
         Stewart and then Marsh Patman.

         In Deed Book N. page 264, Walton County, Georgia, a deed
         shows that a Henry F. Hill purchased 196 acres from Robert
         Born, recorded 12 October 1841, witnessed by John Hosch,
         ASAPH HILL and John McCully.

         Deed Book N, Page 265, dated 2nd July 1841, Henry F. Hill
         sells to Barker & Smith for $ 517.00 258 and 3/4 acres of
         land (154 acres in Walton County and 104 and 3/4 in Jackson
         County, Georgia). Recorded 12 October 1841.

         3.   ASAPH HILL 6/ (SON OF RICHARD HILL JR. 5/ & DORCAS
              FUNDERBURG

         Asaph Hill 6/, WAS born 1804, married 1st Mary Mobley, the
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         daughter of Micajah Mobley & Elizabeth Mobley.  Children
         were:

               a. Elizabeth Hill 7/, born ca. 1826/27 married David
                  Stevenson, son of James Stevenson & Nellie Weir.  It
                  appears that they moved to Mississippi.
               b. William E. Hill 7/, born 1830 in Fairfield County.
                  No records of his marriage but he was listed in the
                  1860 Census for Fairfield County as:

                     WILLIAM E. HILL    Age 30   Schoolteacher
                     Jane Hill          Age 29
                     Alice Hill         Age 7
                     Sevina             Age 3,
                     Mary Hill          Age 2

         Now the fact that that this name is listed close to A.A. Hill
         and the fact that Simeon Hill Sr. Estate settlement shows a
         William E.M. Hill and wife "M. Jain" may mean he is related
         to Simeon rather than Asaph Hill.

         When Mary Mobley Hill (first wife) died Asaph Hill 6/ married
         a second time to Jennie Stevenson (b. ca. 1824) and they had
         six children.

              a.  James S. Hill 7/, born 1840, killed in Civil War on
                  30th June 1862 at the Battle of Seven Pines.
              b.  Alexander Hill 7/, born 1842, CSA, captured 2nd
                  April 1865 at Garret Station.
              c.  Sarah Jane Hill 7/, b. ca. 1848-49.
              d.  David Hill 7/, born 1850.
              e.  Catherine Hill 7/, born 1853.
              f.  Martha Hill 7/, born 1856.

         4.   ELIJAH HILL 6/ (SON OF RICHARD HILL JR. 5/ & DORCAS
              FUNDERBURGH

         Elijah Hill 6/ was another son of Richard Hill Jr. 5/ and his
         wife, Dorcas Funderburg. He was born ca. 1808 and died ca.
         1848 or 1849. His wife was Margaret Price, daughter of
         William Price and Dorcas Mobley, daughter of Samuel Mobley Sr
         and wife Mary Wagner of Fairfield County. Samuel Mobley was
         the son of Edward Mobley and wife, Susannah Mobley.

         Elijah Hill 6/ moved his family to Walton County, Georgia ca.
         1839 or 1840.

         On 23rd January 1839, Elijah Hill 6/ and wife Margaret Hill,
         of Fairfield County sold all their rights to 200 acres for
         $ 625.00 to Dorcas Price, Executrix of William Price, father
         in law to Elijah.  Apparently this land was 200 acres in
         Chester County, just across the line from Fairfield County
         and was part of Margaret's inheritance from her father.
         Elijah Hill lived on the border of Walton & Jackson County,
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         just on the Walton County side.

         In the 1840 Census of Walton County, Georgia, Elijah Hill 6/
         is listed on Page 99...

         Elijah Hill
         1 male under 5 years     2 females under 5 years
         1 male 5-10 years        1 female 20-30 years
         1 male 30-40 years

         By the time of the 1850 Census of Walton County, Georgia he
         was apparently dead and his family is shown as:
          (Page 66)
                             age      Sex        Born   Occupation
          Margarette  Hill    38       F         S.C.     Farmer
          Dorcas Hill         16       F         S.C.
          Edward Hill         13       M         S.C.
          Mary Hill           12       F         S.C.
          William Hill         8       M         Georgia
          Susan Hill           6       F         "  "
          Richard Hill         4       M         "  "
          Asaph Hill           3       M         "  "
          Joseph Livesay      28       M         "  "

                Information on the children of Elijah Hill 6/

         A.   Dorcas Hill 7/ daughter of Elijah Hill 6/, was born ca.
         1834 and married David L. Etchison prior to September of
         1852.  "Walton County Georgia Records Minutes, Page 281,
         Monday-September 6, 1852..."To honorable court of Ordinary,
         Walton Co., State of Georgia...The petition of David L.
         Etchison in right of his wife, Dorcas P., formerly Dorcas P.
         Hill and heir at law of estate of Elijah Hill, deceased,
         apply for distributive share of Negroes of said estate-
         Freeholders Robert Cooksey, Abram Hammonds, Leonard B. Hayse,
         John R.  Moon, Jonathan Hill & James R. Etchison."

         B.   Edward Hill 7/, son of Elijah Hill 6/ & Margaret Hill
         was born ca. 1837 in Fairfield County, S.C. and he moved to
         Georgia with his parents and is shown in the records as
         follows: Index to Estates: Returns H, Page 73..."Edward Hill,
         minor, Joseph Livsey, Guardian."

         C.   Mary Hill 7/, daughter of Elijah Hill 6/ & Margaret
         Hill.  She was born ca. 1838 in Fairfield County, S.C. and
         moved as a minor to Walton County, Georgia with her parents.
         That County Records (Index to Estates) shows Mary Hill (minor
         of Elijah Hill) M.C. Malone, Guardian.

         D.   William Hill 7/ son of Elijah Hill 6/ & Margaret Hill.
         He was born in Georgia in 1842. "Walton County Georgia,
         Returns H, Page 395, shows..."William Hill in account with
         his guardian, Margaret Hill (his mother) received from Dorcas
         Hill's estate...Medical Bill from Dr. John R. Moore...Negro
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         for this minor was Charles...(account similar to that of his
         sister, Susan Hill).

         E.   Susan Hill 7/, daughter of Elijah Hill 6/, was born ca.
         1844 in Georgia. Walton County Georgia Returns H. Page
         394..."Susan Hill, minor-orphan of Elijah Hill-her guardian
         was her mother, Margaret Hill."

         1853- Board & clothing for said ward for year   $35.00
               Cash paid Coleman                           9.90
               Cash paid Ordinary                          1.12
               For Board & clothing for years 1848-49
               during which years her father's estate was
               not distributed & unavailable for her
               support                                    40.00
         1853 Cr.-
         Jan 1 Cash received of M.C. Malone, guardian to
               make my ward equal in the distribution of
               E. Hill's estate                          $ 50.00
         Jan 20 Cash received of Dorcas Hill's estate      17.15

         1854
         Jan 7  Administrator of E. Hill's estate      $  260.66
         Jan 1  For Hire of Negro Lucy                     45.00
         April 1 Cash received of the estate of Dorcas
                 Hill                                      26.85
                 The Negro woman & child Sam were placed
                 in my possession Jan 1st, 1853 & valued
                 by distributes at                    $  800.00
         1853   Tuition for Susan Hill, $ 9.90 for the
                year
         1854   April 21-Margaret Hill swears to above,
                R. J. Kennedy, Ordinary

         F.   Richard Hill 7/, son of Elijah Hill 6/, was born ca.
         1846 in Walton County, Georgia and he is listed among those
         records very similar to those of his sister Susan.

         G.   Asaph Hill 7/, son of Elijah Hill 6/, was born in Walton
         County, Georgia ca. 1847. M.C. Malone was his guardian and he
         is listed among the county records similar to those of his
         brothers and sister.

         5.  MATTHEW HILL 6/ (SON OF RICHARD HILL JR. 5/ & DORCAS
             FUNDERBURGH

         Matthew Hill 6/, son of Richard Hill Jr. 5/ was born ca.
         1810  in Fairfield County, S.C. and there is no record of a
         marriage. He apparently was engaged in farming and is known
         to have purchased a tract of land from his father. There is
         no other information on him at this point.

         6.  REUBEN F. HILL 6/ (SON OF RICHARD HILL JR. 5/ & DORCAS
             FUNDERBURGH)
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         Reuben Hill 6/ was a son of Richard Hill Jr. 5/ and his wife
         Dorcas Funderburg. He was born in Fairfield County, S.C. ca.
         1813 and died in August of 1848. He was married to Elizabeth
         Ellen Housch in Georgia ca. 1839.  She was born in South
         Carolina ca. 1821 and died on 8th May 1895 in the Indian
         Territory.

         Elizabeth Housch was the daughter of Matthew Housch and Mary
         Hill. Mary Hill 5/ was the daughter of William Hill Jr. 4/
         and Dorcas Mobley and thus was the sister to Richard Hill Jr.
         5/ and the aunt to his children.

         Jacob Feaster Jr. applied to the courts to administer the
         estate of Reuben Hill and was so appointed in 1853.

         Fairfield Probate Court Records show the following:
         Dated 5th January 1852..."The petition of Jacob Feaster Jr.
         sheweth that Reuben Hill 5/, late of the District of
         Fairfield, departed this life sometime in the month of August
         1848, INTESTATE, leaving at his death, a widow, Elizabeth
         Ellen Hill, who has since intermarried with one Jacob F.
         Hill-and three children to wit: John C. Hill 6/ who is about
         10 years old, Susannah Hill 6/, about 7 years old and Henry
         W.  Hill 7/, who is about 5 years old, his only heirs at law,
         and personal property to the amount of $ 2300.00 and your
         petitioner further prays that he may be appointed
         Administrator by complying with the requisitions of the law
         in such cases made and provided."

         It is not exactly clear what the problem was but apparently
         later John C. Hill 6/ (probably by a guardian as he was still
         a minor) and others filed suit against Jacob Hill & their
         mother and the court ordered the lands to be auctioned and
         the proceeds divided among the heirs.

         The administrator's accounts contained the proceeds from the
         sale of the plantation and some of the chattels but did not
         include the sale of the slaves. These were sold by Jacob Hill
         in 1859 in Walker County, Georgia, for the estate.

                            Children of Reuben Hill 6/:
              1.   John Crawford Hill 7/ was born in April of 1840,
                   died on 3rd December 1910.  He was married first to
                   Mary Howell; second to Amanda Jane Anderson.
              2.   Susannah P. Hill 7/, born 1844, moved to Walker
                   County, Georgia and married a Mattox ca. 1872.
                   Her children were: Buddy Mattox 8/ (never married).
                   & a daughter, who is known to have married ?? and
                   had two children.  Susannah Hill 7/ died after 1910
                   in Georgia.
              3.   Henry W. Hill 7/, born 1846, died ca.  1891.  He
                   married by 1872, a Sarah Hill, born 1848, died 14
                   January 1905.  (Sarah's ancestry has not been
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                   determined, but one source said she had a sister
                   Elizabeth Hill, and they were cousins to Henry Hill
                   7/.) It is possible that it was the daughter of
                   Asaph Hill 6/, a uncle, who had a daughter named
                   Sarah.  Henry Hill 7/ moved from Georgia to Scott
                   County Arkansas, where he died.

         The widow of Reuben Hill 6/, Elizabeth Ellen Hill, married a
         second time to Jacob Hill, nephew to Reuben Hill 6/ and a
         younger man than she.

         The 1850 Census of Fairfield County, S.C, Vol #4, Page 480,
         P. 592, 593 shows:

                               Age      Born    Occupation
         Elizabeth Ellen Hill  28        S.C.   Planter
         Crawford Hill (John?) 10         "
         Susannah Hill          6         "
         Henry Hill             4         "
         Jacob Hill            20         "     Planter

         After Jacob Hill married the widow Elizabeth Ellen Hill, they
         had two children:

              1.   James L.W. Hill, born 1852 Fairfield County, S.C.,
                   moved to Walton Co., Georgia in 1853 then in 1880
                   he moved to Scott County, Arkansas with his mother
                   and brothers. He died shortly afterwards.  He never
                   married.

               2.  Matthew W.  Hill, born 1855 in Walker County,
                   Georgia, moved to Scott County, Arkansas with his
                   mother and brothers. He died ca. 1892.  He never
                   married.

         In 1853, the landed estate of Reuben Hill 6/ was auctioned
         off to Jacob Stone and the widow and Jacob Hill, her new
         husband, moved to northwest Georgia, to the southern portions
         of Walker County, near the Chattooga County line. This was
         near the brother of Ellen Hill, John J. Housch, who lived in
         Chattooga County, not far from Trion, Georgia.

         Jacob Hill bought a farm and their second son Matthew Hill
         was born there in 1855. Jacob Hill sold off the slaves
         belonging to the estate of Reuben Hill 6/ and died later that
         year, leaving a reputation of being a smart business man and
         a very good farmer.

         Elizabeth Ellen Hill stayed in Walker County through the 1870
         Census and in 1880 moved to Scott County, Arkansas with her
         sons James and Matthew Hill. After the sons died, she moved
         to the Cherokee Nation at Dwight Mission. Her son, John
         Crawford Hill 7/, lived close to the Presbyterian Indian
         Mission School, where his children attended school, Elizabeth
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         Ellen Hill died on 8th May 1895 in her 74th year and is
         buried at Dwight Mission Cemetery which adjoins the Mission
         School.

         7.  MARY HILL 6/ (DAUGHTER OF RICHARD HILL JR. 5/ & DORCAS
             FUNDERBURG

         Mary Hill 7/, was born in Fairfield County ca. 1815-20. No
         records on her exist except the knowledge that she married
         William Chapman, before the settlement of her father's estate
         about 1840.

         8.  ELIZABETH HILL 6/ (DAUGHTER OF RICHARD HILL JR. 5/ &
             DORCAS FUNDERBURGH.

         Elizabeth Hill 7/, was born in Fairfield County, S.C. between
         1815 and 1820. She married Nathaniel Achison sometimes after
         1840 and before 1849.  The 1790 Census shows her as Head of
         the Household, indicating that she was now widowed.

         1790 Census
         Mary Aitchison-6 in family
         John Aitcheson 5 in family (was this a son?)

         9.   DORCAS HILL 6/ (DAUGHTER OF RICHARD HILL JR. 5/ & DORCAS
              FUNDERBURGH.

         Dorcas Hill 6/ was born in Fairfield County in 1820 and
         married John Stevenson prior to 1840. He was born in 1813 in
         Fairfield County, the son of James & Nellie Weir Stevenson.
         Their children: (births from census records)
              a.   Ellen Stevenson 7/      born 1840
              b.   Elizabeth Stevenson 7/  born 1842
              c.   David Stevenson 7/      born 1844
              d.   James Stevenson 7/      born 1846
              e.   John S. Stevenson 7/    born 1849
              f.   Martha Stevenson 7/     born 1851-52

         Dorcas Hill 6/ died between 1850-1860 and John Stevenson
         remarried a second time to Lizzie Levister. The following
         children were born to John but it has not been found which of
         the two wives were the mother of the following:

              g.   William Chris. Stevenson 7/ born 1856
              h.   Hugh M. Stevenson 7/        born 1857
              i.   Nancy Stevenson 7/          born 1859
              j.   David ? E. Stevenson 7/     born 1861

         After the birth of David 7/, there was a gap of 6 years
         before the next child was born. Whether this was the child of
         the second wife Lizzie or the third wife, Mary Ann McMullen,
         is not known.

              k.   Jennite Stevenson 7/        born 1867
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         Now it appears that most of the Hill families shown above
         moved into South Carolina area of today's Fairfield County
         before the Revolution. Where they lived prior to that time is
         unclear, but the Mobley Family came from Maryland via way of
         Lunenburg County, Virginia, in the portion that became
         Bedford County, and may have meet the Richard Hill-William
         Hill families there.

            JOHN CRAWFORD HILL 7/ (SON OF REUBEN F. HILL 6/)

         John Crawford Hill 7/ was born in April of 1840 in Fairfield
         County, S.C. He moved to Walker County, Georgia in 1853, with
         his step-father (Jacob Hill) and his mother. He helped Jacob
         Hill clear land for farming and attended school.

         In 1861 he married Mary C. Howell, daughter of Gabe Howell.
         He enlisted in the Confederate Army (Co. K., 21st Ga.
         Infantry Regiment on 21st August 1861. In the November 1861
         Muster Roll, he was listed as being sick at Sudley Church
         Hospital in Virginia and in December he was in hospital as
         being sick in Culpeper, Virginia.

         He came home to Walker County, Georgia in early 1864 on
         leave, returned to, served is time in the army and came home
         after being discharged in May of 1865.
         The children of John Crawford Hill 7/ and Mary C. Howell
         were:
              a.   a daughter born 1862 -died 1862.
              b.   John Huston Hill 8/, born 1865 in Walker County,
                   Georgia, died 1905 in Athens, Tennessee.  He
                   married Jane Slack, of Walker County, Georgia and
                   they had one child, Ethel Hill 9/.
              c.   Virgil Eugene Hill 8/, born August 3, 1867 in
                   Walker County, Georgia, died in August 1950 in
                   Oklahoma.  He married Sarah M.  Elizabeth Hamilton
                   on 14 October 1894 at Checotah, Indian Territory.
                   They had 12 children.
              d.   Earl Van Dorn Hill 8/, born November 1869, died ca.
                   1883.
              e.   Baxter Hill 8/, born 1871 in Walker County, Ga.,
                   died 1883 in Choctaw Nation, Indian Territory.

         In 1874, John 7/ & Mary Howell were in Mississippi, where
         Mary died. In 1876 John C. Hill 7/ married a second time to
         Amanda Jane Anderson in Walker County, Georgia.  She was the
         eldest child of William Anderson, who was killed in the
         civil war.  Their children were:

              f.   Claude Hill 8/, born 29 May 1877 in Walker County,
                   Georgia, died 22 March 1932 at Muskogee, Oklahoma.
              g.   Susannah Hill 8/, born 25 July 1879 in Walker
                   County, Georgia.
              h.   De Forest Hill Sr. 8/, born 22 March 1882 in Scott
                   County, Arkansas, died 21 July 1955 at Okmulgee,
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                   Oklahoma.
              i.   James Arthur Hill 8/, born 27 July 1887.

         In 1880, John C. Hill 7/, along with his family, mother and
         brothers Jimmie & Mathey, moved to the western part of Scott
         County, Arkansas, near the line of the Choctaw Nation, Indian
         Territory.

         While living there, he was a witness in the court of Federal
         Judge "Hanging Judge" Parker and also was a witness at
         Federal Judge McGill's court at Muskogee, Indian Territory in
         1899.

         In 1883, he moved across the line into Indian Territory and
         his son Van Hill died about that time. Another son, Baxter
         Hill 8/ died in 1887 and in that year he moved northward into
         the Cherokee Nation, one half mile from Dwight Mission, a
         Presbyterian Indian School. Their children went to school
         there. He was a devout Christian and served as a Minister in
         the Disciples of Christ Church, leading services in Sallisaw,
         Vian and Marble City neighborhoods in the Cherokee Nation.

         ************************************************************

            THE FAMILY OF MOSES HILL OF FAIRFIELD COUNTY, S.C.

         Note: This is the family line of the writer, Robert R. Hill
         of Brandon, Florida.

         Moses Hill was born sometimes after July 1st 1757 or in 1758,
         because on the tombstone of his widow, Savilla N. Roden, it
         states that he died on July 1st 1821 at the age of 63.  His
         wife, Savilla N.  Roden was the daughter of Thomas Roden
         (originally of Maryland) and wife Mary Potts.  Savilla N.
         (Roden) Hill died in Green County, Alabama on 23rd July 1844.

         The names of Moses Hill's parents as well as the origins of
         his family remain a mystery, even after some 15 years of
         researching.  Based on what information that has been found
         we have come to think that the following conclusions are
         fairly accurate:

         a.   Moses was not born in South Carolina and was probably a
              brother to Leonard Hill and a Thomas Hill, both of whom
              lived in the same immediate neighborhood as he did and
              who also served in the American Revolution as did Moses
              Hill. Leonard Hill later moved to Clark County,
              Kentucky.
         b.   Moses Hill was in South Carolina by 1778 as he witnessed
              a Roden deed. He married Savilla N. Roden sometimes
              after May 1778, when she had signed as a witness to a
              deed by her father as Savilla Roden.,.
         c.   Charles Hill Sr. 1/ of Craven County, who obtained a
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              1749 land grant, appears to have been the uncle of Moses
              Hill. In a fragment of a page from the Moses Hill bible
              it states that "Coz. Mary Heyll (Hill), wife of Charles
              C. Hill, died 27th June 1827." Since we know Charles
              Hill Sr. died in 1769, it has to be his son, Charles Jr.
              Also William Augustus Hill 2/ son of Charles Hill Sr. 1/
              would be a cousin to Moses Hill.

         Moses Hill served in the S.C. Militia in the Revolution a
         total of 120 days as a Private and his service is verified by
         Salley's Indents of South Carolina in Charleston. He was a
         Private.

         After the war, it appears that Moses Hill gradually gained
         a high status of living by acquiring land and slaves and he
         was addressed as "Moses Hill Esquire."   He later was a
         surveyor and then became a Justice of the Peace in the area
         around Little River, Fairfield County.

         Moses Hill and his wife Savilla had the following children:

              1.   Thomas Hill 2/, born 1780, married Jemima Woodward
                   ca.  1805, died between January and May of 1824 in
                   Fairfield County.  (Ancestor of writer, Robert R.
                   Hill Sr. 6/).  (Jemima is the link to the Simpson
                   family in Fairfax Co., Va.).
              2.   James Hill 2/, born 21 November 1782, married
                   Susannah Glenn (b. 24 Mar. 1781, d. 9 June 1855).
                   James Hill died in Union County, S.C. on 27th
                   October 1854.
              3.   Sarah (Sally) Caroline Hill 2/, b. ca. 1785,
                   married Rev. John Pearson, they moved to Green Co.,
                   Ala.  She died in Ala.
              4.   Littleton Hill 2/, born ca. 1788, died single
                   shortly after 1810 census.  Buried by his father.
              5.   Moses Berry Hill 2/, born in 1795, married Mary
                   Bowles Glenn, he died October 14th, 1824.
              6.   Harriet Windham Hill 2/, born 5th March 1802,
                   married Edward Pickett Mobley, she died 30th April
                   1857.
              7.   George Washington Hill 2/, born 8th September 1803,
                   married Sarah A. Moore, they moved to Green Co.,
                   Ala., he died there on 8th September 1857.
              8.   Rebecca Carlisle Hill 2/, born 20th December 1807,
                   married Dr. John Trezevant DeGraffenreid, died in
                   Green Co., Ala. on 11th August 1842.

         Note: Thomas Hill was 3rd great grandfather of Robert R. Hill
         of Brandon, Florida and the writer of this article.  His line
         will be displayed in bold print.

                            LEONARD HILL FAMILY

         It is generally accepted by several researchers that Leonard
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         Hill was probably a brother of Moses Hill and a Thomas Hill,
         all three of Fairfield County South Carolina.  The evidence,
         while circumstantial, is quite strong and has been discussed
         previously by some researchers.

         Evidence given to me indicates that Moses Hill was the eldest
         of the three brothers and Thomas Hill was the youngest.
         Moses Hill was born in 1757 (but after July 1st) or in 1758.
         Leonard Hill is suspected to have been born ca.  1760 or
         1762. Thomas Hill is believed to have been born ca.  1765-
         1767.

         Leonard Hill, like his suspected two brothers, is known to
         have served in the South Carolina Militia during the American
         Revolution.  In The Comptroller General's Files, Book N,
         Indent 41 (AA3605), it shows that in 1781 Leonard served 90
         days under General Pickens as a horseman and took part in the
         siege of Augusta. In the same book it shows that in 1782, he
         served another 60 days as a footman at Orangeburg and Four
         Holes Swamp. Moses Hill also served here too.

         On 8th of August 1785, Leonard Hill purchased 100 acres of
         land from Henry Land (Fairfield Deed Book B, Page 55). This
         deed was witnessed by Burr Harrison, Susannah Dunford and
         Moses Hill. Susannah Dunford was named as the mother of three
         of his children in his Clark County Kentucky Will of 1825,
         but she was never acknowledged as his wife..

         In S.C. on the 5th of January 1786, Leonard Hill received a
         land grant of 82 acres, adjacent to the above land but on the
         26th of May 1788, Leonard sold the 82 acres of land to his
         suspected brother, Thomas Hill.  This deed was signed by
         Elizabeth Hill, wife of Leonard Hill. By the time of the 1790
         Census, Leonard Hill was in Fayette (Clark) County.

         The life of Leonard Hill is somewhat confusing as he
         obviously had a wife in South Carolina named Elizabeth, as
         she signed the deed when they sold their land.  Her name does
         not show up again any place else and no record of any
         children by her has been found.  Neither she nor any children
         (of hers) is mentioned in the Kentucky will of Leonard Hill
         in 1825.

         Leonard Hill's will was dated 4th July 1825 (Clark County,
         Kentucky in Book 6, Page 30) and proved in August of 1825.
         The will of Leonard Hill names Susannah Dunford as the mother
         of his three married daughters, Mary, Sarah and Elizabeth.

         Leonard Hill named Rachel Dunford as the mother of sons John
         and Moses Hill.  At no time does he acknowledge either
         Susannah or Rachel Dunford as his wives.  Neither does he
         mentioned Elizabeth (his South Carolina wife) or any of their
         children (if any).
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         It is believed that Susannah & Rachel Dunford were sisters.
         Susannah is believed to have been the eldest of the two and
         probably died first. So far the names of their parents has
         not been determined.

         After Leonard Hill died, the Clark County, Kentucky records
         show that Rachel Dunford married Jesse Hodges on the 27th
         April 1826 and surety was her son Moses Hill, who's father
         was Leonard Hill.

         In the 1850 Census of Clark County, Kentucky (Page 8,
         dwelling # 108) Rachel Dunford is listed as Rachel Hodges,
         age 75, born in North Carolina. (birth ca. 1775).  This
         information plus the wording of the will of Leonard Hill,
         suggest that he was not legally married to either of the
         Dunford (Dunsford?) women.

         Kentucky land deeds and other records indicate that Leonard
         Hill was a well to do land and slave owner and apparently was
         involved in the tobacco industry and owned some warehouses.

         Since Leonard's will was wrote on 4th July 1825 and proved in
         August of 1825 he obviously died between the two dates.

         THE CONNECTING OF THE LEONARD HILL, MOSES HILL AND THOMAS
         HILL FAMILIES OF FAIRFIELD COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA TO MEMBERS
         OF THE CHARLES HILL 1/ FAMILY.

         In 1788, Leonard Hill sold to Thomas Hill his S.C. land (82
         acres) that was granted to him on 5th June 1786 and then he
         moved to Kentucky.  Elizabeth, wife of Leonard Hill also
         signed the deed but she is never heard from again.  Neither
         she nor any children by her is mentioned in Leonard's
         Kentucky will.

         Leonard Hill "assigns forever all that plantation or tract of
         land, containing 82 acres, which was granted to LEONARD HILL,
         bearing date of the 5th January 1786 , but transferred from
         this LEONARD HILL to this THOMAS HILL, the 26th day of May
         1788, said land situated in the District of Camden (Fairfield
         Co.), on waters of LITTLE RIVER, bounding on LEONARD HILL'S
         land and land laid out to WILLIAM MCCLINTOCK, and part on
         vacant land when surveyed."

         Later when Thomas Hill sold this 82 acres of land, his wife
         Judith also signed the deed, and thus these deeds seem to
         connect Thomas Hill to Leonard Hill.  This deed, plus the
         other deeds and indents helps to establish a connection
         between Thomas Hill, Moses Hill & Leonard Hill.

         On the 27th of March 1787,  Thomas Hill endorsed the Indent
         of Samuel Biggerstaff, which was witnessed by Moses Hill. It
         is believed that this was the same Thomas Hill, that
         witnessed with Moses Hill the Indent of Samuel Biggerstaff
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         and whom is known to have had a wife named Judith.

                     ADDITIONAL FAMILY CONNECTIONS

         Now the fragment of Moses Hill's bible seems to imply that
         Charles C. Hill Jr 2/ was a cousin, thus his brother William
         Augustus Hill 2/ would also have been a cousin to Moses,
         Leonard & Thomas Hill. Charles Hill Sr.  1/, father to
         Charles Jr. 2/ and William Augustus Hill 2/, would then be
         the uncle to Moses, Leonard & Thomas Hill.

         On the 5th of January 1792 Thomas Hill & wife Judith sold to
         Andrew Allen the same 82 acres of land he purchased from
         Leonard Hill in 1788 (originally granted Leonard Hill).
         (Ref: Fairfield Deed Book I, Page 35)

         It has long been suspected that a Thomas Hill was the father
         of Moses Hill and if Leonard & this Thomas Hill (wife Judith)
         were brothers to Moses, then he could have been a Thomas Hill
         Jr.

         A Thomas Hill Sr. is known to have existed in this area of
         South Carolina from a tax list of Fairfield District, and
         which stated he was "deceased in 1792."  Whether he was
         connected to this particular Thomas Hill or not has not been
         determined.

         Now in the Hill-Hill Mobley Book, on page 113, it refers to a
         sale of land (dated 1802) by a Burrill Hill of Rutherford
         County, North Carolina and a George Augusta (Augustus?) Hill
         (page 116) of Chester County, South Carolina (adjacent to
         Fairfield County and once part of the old Craven County).

         In Fairfield County Deed Book N, Page 419, Burrill Hill of
         Rutherford County, N.C. sells land in Fairfield County, South
         Carolina to Andrew McDowell, land originally granted Charles
         Hill on 23rd June 1774.

         Based on the date of the grant it seems that this Charles
         Hill had to have been Charles Hill Jr. 2/ (wife Mary) and I
         suspect that Burrill Hill 3/ was a son to this Charles Hill
         2/, and Charles 2/ had probably died by this time & Burril 3/
         had inherited the land or Charles 2/ had sold the land to
         Burrill Hill 3/.

         The interesting thing here is that a Burwell (sic) Hill of
         S.C.  sold some Virginia land to a Thomas Hill of Surry
         County, Virginia. (This provided to me by Mr. Brent Holcomb
         when he was researching for me in 1985).

         On the 20th day of January in the year of our Lord, 1790
         a deed between BURRELL HILL of Rutherford County, North
         Carolina, planter of the one part, and ANDREW MCDOWELL of
         Fairfield County and State of South Carolina of the other
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         part, for the sum of TWO SHILLINGS, current money of the
         state, paid by the said ANDREW MCDOWELL, deeds over 100 acres
         in Fairfield County "it being a certain tract of 100 acres of
         land lying and being on WATEREE CREEK in Fairfield and State
         of South Carolina "land originally granted unto the said
         CHARLES HILL, by his Excellency, WILLIAM BULL, Governor in
         Chief, and recorded in the Secretaries Office, BOOK 222 (or
         LLL?? not clear) page 598, dated 23 June 1784."

         The date of the grant shows that it was Charles C. Hill Jr.
         2/ who received the grant and Burrill Hill 3/ probably
         inherited it from his father, Charles C. Hill Jr. 2/.

         Now based on the above information, it appears Charles C.
         Hill Jr. 2/ (wife Mary) was a cousin to Moses, Leonard &
         Thomas Hill and the children of Charles 2/, including George
         Augustus Hill 3/ & Burrill Hill 3/, were 2nd cousins to
         Moses, Leonard & Thomas Hill of Fairfield County.

         Mabry Hill 3/ & Richard Hill 3/ (wife Agnes) and sons of
         William Augustus Hill 2/, who made a deed out to Jane Rogers,
         would also be cousins to Moses, Leonard and Thomas Hill.

                    THOMAS HILL 2/, SON OF MOSES HILL 1/.

         Thomas Hill 2/, son of Moses Hill & Savilla Roden, married
         Jemima Woodward, daughter of Rev.  William Woodward & wife
         Nancy Elizabeth Barrett.  They were the 3rd paternal great
         grandparents of the writer, Robert R. Hill, of Brandon, Fla.
         Thomas & Jemima Hill had the following children:

              1. Nancy Barrett Hill 3/, b. 4th June 1806 in Fairfield
                 County, S.C.  She married 1st Edward Mabry Mobley and
                 moved to Alabama via way of DeKalb Co., Georgia. They
                 had 8 children.  She remarried 2nd time in Greene
                 County, Alabama to William Price on 27th July 1848,
                 they had a daughter, Jemima Ann Price 4/, b. ca 1849.
                 Her 3rd marriage was to James H. Sims on 4th November
                 1853, no children.  James dead by time of 1860 Census
                 Nancy alive in 1860 Census but then disappears.
              2. Charlotte Louise Hill 3/, b. 8th August 1809 in
                 Fairfield County, S.C.  She married Moses Cockrell
                 and they moved to Noxubee County, Miss.  They had 5
                 children. Charlotte died 28th October 1864, buried by
                 husband in the Soule Methodist Churchyard in Noxubee
                 Co., Miss.
              3. Jemima Hill 3/.  (no data available).
              4. Nathaniel Barrett Hill 3/, born ca. 1811, m. Judith
                 Eliza Stewart ca. 1835-1836, died in New York on
                 December 13th, 1854, He was brought back to
                 Charleston, S.C., but burial location not known.
                 They were 2nd great grandparents of Robert R. Hill.
              5. William Woodward Hill 3/, married cousin Mary Glenn
                 Hill, daughter of Moses Berry Hill 2/.
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              6. Savilla Hill 3/, married Greenberry Mobley, they
                 moved to Greene & then Sumter Co., Alabama.  Had 3
                 children.
              7. Moses Hill 3/, said to have moved to Pickens Co.,
                 Ala.
              8. Thomas Hill 3/.

         Nathaniel Barrett Hill 3/, moved to Columbia, S.C. He was
         part owner of a firm known as "Stalker & Hill." He and his
         partner, Gilbert Stalker, operated a steamship line that made
         runs between Charleston and Columbia. He was sheriff of
         Richland County, S.C. between November 1849 and April 1853,
         when he resigned in order to go to New York as a banker. He
         died in New York City on 13th December 1854. Wife was named
         Judith Eliza Stewart.  Children:

              1. Woodward D. Hill 4/, m. Sally Elizabeth Rucker. He
                 was a Civil War veteran, taught school after the war
                 and lived about 15 miles southeast of Columbia in an
                 area known as Sandy Run.  They were great
                 grandparents of Robert R. Hill.
              2. William Stewart Hill 4/, m. Mary Jane Mobley McCory.
                 He served in CSA, taken prisoner at Chickamauga but
                 survived the war.
              3. Eliza M. Hill 4/, m. Henry C. Nunnamaker.
              4. John Hill 4/, civil war veteran, was killed in
                 Petersburg, Va.
              5. Lawrence Barrett Hill 4/, drummer in CSA, moved to
                 Mississippi, married twice and died there ca. 1918-
                 19.

         Note: All four sons served in 7th S.V. Volunteers, Inftry,
         Co. "C."

         Woodward D. Hill 4/ settled in an area of South Carolina
         about 15 miles southeast of Columbia, called "Sandy Run."  He
         had became involved in a fight with some Yankee Soldiers and
         was running to keep from being arrested. He reached the farm
         of William Rucker and was hid from the authorities. He later
         married the daughter of William Rucker and they had 9
         children, all born in Lexington County, S.C.  This part of
         Lexington County became Calhoun County in 1919.  The children
         were:

              1.  Emma Cornelia Hill 5/, born 14th February 1868 in
                  the Township known as Sandy Run, located in
                  Lexington County, S.C.  (later Calhoun County). She
                  married John Victor Bates ca. 1887-1888. Emma Hill
                  Bates died on 28th September 1940 in the town of
                  North, South Carolina.
              2.  Sally Elizabeth Hill 5/, born 18th February 1869 in
                  Sandy Run, S.C., married ca. 1898 to Ansol Price
                  Dannelly.  They moved to Statesboro, Ga., where she
                  died ca. 1918.
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              3.  Nathaniel Barrett Hill 5/, known as "Barrett." He
                  was born on 8th October 1871 in Sandy Run, S.C.,
                  married  Mary Elizabeth Geiger. He died as a result
                  of a logging accident on 1st April 1927 in a
                  Columbia, S.C.  Hospital.  He is buried in the
                  Elmwood Cemetery in Columbia, S.C.
              4.  Peter Joseph Hill 5/, grandfather to Robert Hill,
                  the compiler of this data.  He was born on 31st
                  October 1874 in Sandy Run, S.C., married Mary Jane
                  Rickenbaker on 28th December 1900.  He died near St.
                  Matthews, S.C. ca. January 1907. He is buried in the
                  church yard of the Congaree Baptist Church in
                  today's Calhoun County, S.C.
              5.  James Franklin Hill 5/, born 13th January 1878 in
                  Sandy Run, married 13 January 1903 to Essie Isota
                  Furtick, he died 21st March 1950, buried in the
                  Church yard of the Oak Grove Methodist Church at
                  Sandy Run.
              6.  William Woodward Hill 5/, born 14th May 1880 in
                  Sandy Run, married 21 April 1910 to Rosa Belle
                  Meetze.  He died in Columbia, S.C. on 20th June
                  1957, buried in Elmwood Cemetery in Columbia, S.C.
              7.  Susan Hill 5/, born 15 April 1883 in Sandy Run,
                  known as "Sooney" to family, she married Charles
                  Saylor.  She died in Columbia, S.C. on 16th March
                  1947, and is buried in Oak Grove Methodist
                  Church yard in Sandy Run.
              8.  Beulah Lee Hill 5/, born 19th January 1886 in Sandy
                  Run, married Edward K. McQuatters on 25th December
                  1907 in Columbia, she died in Hampton, Virginia on
                  13th August 1970.
              9.  Michael (Mike) Hill 5/, born 1st October 1889 at
                  Sandy Run, never married, she died 15th January
                  1969, buried in Oak Grove Methodist Churchyard at
                  Sandy Run.

         Peter Joseph Hill 5/ & Mary Jane Rickenbaker had three
         children, Nolton Raymond Hill Sr. 6/, Gertrude Hill 6/ &
         Flora Dell Hill 6/.

         Nolton Raymond Hill Sr. 6/ married Minnie Ola Blow at
         Portsmouth, Virginia and they were the parents of Nolton
         Raymond Hill Jr. 7/ & Robert R. Hill Sr. 7/ (the writer).

         Robert Ray Hill Sr. 7/, born 9th June 1928 in Portsmouth,
         Virginia (Norfolk County). Served in U.S. Air Force from 1947
         till 1954. Medically retired from U.S. National Weather
         Service in 1976. He married Audrey Eleanor Niles on 21st
         March 1953 in Hillsborough County, Florida. He died 13 Nov 2001.

         Audrey Niles was born 17th October 1930 in Tampa, Florida and
         was a daughter of Amasa Pinckney Niles Sr.  & Anna Elnora
         Nelson.
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                               Children were:
              1.  Robert Ray Hill Jr. 8/ (Robbie), born 26th September
                  1955 at Tampa, Florida, married Janice Lee Scheetz
                  in home of his parents in Brandon, Florida on 24th
                  February 1979.
                                   children:

                   a. Steven Matthew Hill 9/, b. 19 May 1982, Tampa,
                      Fla.
                   b. Lisa Marie Hill 9/, b. 29 August 1984,
                      Brandon, Fla.
                   c. Sarah Ann Hill 9/, b. 15th January 1986,
                      Brandon, Fla.

              2.  Gloria Ann Hill 8/, born 23rd May 1960 in Tampa,
                  Florida, married Roger Lee DeVore at First Methodist
                  Church in Brandon, Florida on 16th June 1979.
                  (Divorced).
                                    Children:
                        a.  Brandon Niles 9/ DeVore, born 27 January
                            1983 in Tampa, Florida.

                                END OF SC.038 DATA
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